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ADDENDUM NO. 1 
TO 

CONTRACT DOCUMENTS, PLANS AND SPECIFICATIONS 
FOR IMPROVEMENTS TO THE 

SPRINGFIELD-BRANSON NATIONAL AIRPORT 
SPRINGFIELD, MISSOURI 

MoDOT PROJECT NO. AIR 126-092A1 
 
 
To All Bidders:  You are requested to make all changes and/or additions contained in this addendum to the 
Bidding Documents.  Failure to acknowledge this Addendum in Proposal shall result in rejection of bid.  
Bidders are informed that the above referenced Contract Documents, Plans and Specifications are modified 
as follows as of January 3, 2014: 
 
 
1. Contract Documents 
 
Section:  B (Volume 1) 
Page:  B 2.1 to 2.26 
Revision: The Bid Proposal has been revised to reflect the adjusted item MO-620b. Items under MO-

620 were adjusted as part of Addendum No. 1.  The Bid Proposal has been re-issued in its 
entirety and is attached at the back of this document. 

 
2. Technical Specifications  
 
Section:  Technical Specifications-Table of Contents (Volume 2) 
Page:  i 
Revision: The specification table of contents has been updated and added in its entirety and is attached 

at the back of this document.  
 
Section:  P-605 Joint Sealing Filler 
Page:  All 
Revision: The specification for Joint Sealing Filler has been added in its entirety and is attached at the 

back of this document.  
 
3. Plans 
 
Sheet:  G003 
Sheet No.: 3 of 125 
Revision: See attached revised sheets dated 01/3/2014. 
 
Sheet:  C801, 802, 804 & 805 
Sheet No.: 94-95, 97-98 of 125 
Revision: See attached revised sheets dated 01/3/2014. 
 
Sheet:  C851 
Sheet No.: 103 of 125 
Revision: See attached revised sheet dated 01/3/2014. 
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Sheet:  City Utilities 1 of 2 
Sheet No.: 124 of 125 
Revision: See attached revised City Utilities Gas & Water Main Extension sheet dated 12/18/2013. 
 
Sheet:  City Utilities 2 of 2 
Sheet No.: 125 of 125 
Revision: See attached revised City Utilities Gas & Water Main Extension sheet dated 12/18/2013. 
 
4. Clarification 

a) Please find attached the Joint Trench Detail per the City Utilities Construction Standard of 
Springfield, Missouri.  

 
5. Questions 
 

a) Can the Bid Tabulation breakout for the August 5, 2013 bid opening be shared? 
a. The bid Tabulation from the previous bid of the GA Development project is attached. 

Please note the project limits and scope has changed.  
 
The following Questions and Clarifications were included as part of three Addendums for the GA Development 
MoDOT Project No. AIR 126-092A1 bid opening on August 5, 2013. Please note that the project limits and 
scope have changed.  

 
a) An asbestos inspection was conducted by Security Storage Service, Inc. on the buildings to be 

removed. The pipe wrap on the exhaust duct of the generator in the electric building tested positive 
for asbestos. Removal of the asbestos material will be considered incidental to P-100a. No other 
items were suspect for asbestos content in any of the other buildings to be removed. Please see the 
attached letters from Security Storage Service, Inc. 

 
b) The Traffic Barricades used for Traffic Control on the parking lot shall be lighted Traffic Barricades.  

 
c) Can the Contractor haul the excess dirt and millings off-site in lieu of stockpiling on-site? 

a. The Contractor cannot haul the excess dirt and millings off-site.  
 

d) Do we know where the Stockpile areas for millings are? 
a. Yes. Please see plan sheet G005 for the stock pile location.  

 
e) Can there be two successful bidders where one contractor is awarded Schedule I and another 

Schedule II? 
a. No. Split awards will not be awarded. The owner reserves the right to select any one of the 

combinations of the base bid(s) and alternate bid(s), which in the judgment of the owner, 
best serves the owner’s interest. The right is reserved, as the City of Springfield may require, 
to reject any bid and all bids. 

  
f) Do we account for encountering rock in our earthwork quantities? 

a. No. Bid item MO-152b accounts for Class C Excavation and bid item MO-152c accounts 
for Igneous Rock Excavation.  

 
g) For the utility trenches, do we account for the potential for encountering rock while trenching?   

a. No. there is a separate bid item for “Pipe Installation Rock Excavation.” 
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h) If the calendar days are suspended over the winter months, is it possible to do some minor work 
while the calendar days are turned off?   

a. No, unless Contractor pays for unscheduled employment per section 80-08.   
 

i) Can the Contractor pay the engineer’s fees for being on site during a winter shutdown? 
a. See section 80-08 for the unscheduled employment of the Resident Engineer.  

 
j) Is there steel in the concrete apron pavement to be removed? 

a. Yes, there is a potential for dowel bars, wire mesh, and keyways. 
 

k) Canopy removal at old terminal ring road:  Is it to be removed to a certain column?   
a. End cap of existing canopy to be salvaged and reused at the end of the canopy once the 

portion to be demolished has been complete to the nearest column beyond demolition.  
 

l) Transformers shown on Sheet C111:  Are the transformers to be turned over to City Utilities or 
removed off site? 

a. The transformers are to be turned over to City Utilities.  
 

m)  If dirt is taken “off site” then you don’t have to pay prevailing wage?   
a. Prevailing wages shall be paid for moving any material from airport project to stockpile area 

and back.  
 

n) Must city utilities be installed by an approved City Utilities contractor? 
a. Yes.  

 
o) What do you need millings for? 

a. Milling shall be stockpiled in the designated area for use on future projects.  
 

p) Is the joint methodology the same as for runways and taxiways?  Do we also have to do for apron 
and auto parking, etc?   

a. Yes.  
 

q) What size is required for the signs on sheets C850? 
a. The size of the signs shall be in accordance with the Conventional Road size in the current 

Manual of Uniform Traffic Control Devices (MUTCD).  See Table 2B-1 for Regulatory Sign 
and Plaque Sizes and Table 2D-1 for Conventional Road Guide Sign Sizes. Reflectivity shall 
also meet the MUTCD minimum requirements.  
 

r) Detail 1/C602 Butt Joint Detail on page 86 of 130. I only find it on the plans in one place shown in 
section G-G; G/C302 C305 on Page 85 of 130. Is this the only place to construct this joint on the 
project? 

a.  Detail 1 on sheet C602 is a typical butt joint detail. It shall be used where new asphalt is 
being tied into existing asphalt. At minimum, it shall be used on the tie in to N. General 
Aviation Ave. on sheet C305.  

 
Questions will only be taken via written format to Jviation, Inc. until Monday January 20, 2013 3:00 p.m. 
(CST). 

 
** END OF ADDENDUM NO. 1 ** 
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MO-152 EXCAVATION AND EMBANKMENT
MO-155 FLY ASH TREATED SUBGRADE
MO-156 EROSION AND SEDIMENT CONTROL
MO-209 CRUSHED AGGREGATE BASE COURSE
MO-401S PLANT MIX BITUMINOUS PAVEMENTS
MO-603 BITUMINIOUS TACK COAT
MO-610 STRUCTURAL PORTLAND CEMENT CONCRETE
MO-620 RUNWAY AND TAXIWAY PAINTING
MO-701 PIPE FOR STORM DRAINS AND CULVERTS
MO-901 SEEDING
MO-905 TOPSOILING
MO-908 MULCHING
MoDOT-608 CONCRETE MEDIAN, MEDIAN STRIP, SIDEWALK, CURB RAMPS 
MoDOT-720 MECHANICALLY STABALIZED EARTH WALL SYSTEMS 
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P-312 NON-WOVEN GEOTEXTILE FABRICS
P-501 PORTLAND CEMENT CONCRETE PAVEMENTS
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Division 26 ELECTRICAL SPECIFICATIONS
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Issued for Bid – Addendum No. 1 P-605-1 Jviation, Inc. 
December 9, 2013   MoDOT Project No. AIR 126-092A1 

ITEM P-605  JOINT SEALING FILLER 1 
 2 

 3 
DESCRIPTION 4 
 5 
605-1.1  This item shall consist of providing and installing a resilient and adhesive joint sealing filler 6 
capable of effectively sealing joints and cracks in pavements. 7 
 8 
 9 
MATERIALS 10 
 11 
605-2.1  JOINT SEALERS.  Joint sealing materials shall meet the requirements of ASTM D 5893 12 
– Standard Specification of Cold-Applied, Single Component, Chemically Curing Silicone Joint 13 
Sealant for Portland Cement Concrete Pavements. The sealant shall have a minimum of 75 percent 14 
extensibility at a temperature range of -50° to 200° F. 15 
 16 
The sealant shall comply with ASTM 5893 – Standard Specifications for Cold Applied, Single 17 
Component, Chemically Curing Silicone Joint Sealant for Portland Cement  Concrete Pavements. 18 
 19 
Before installation of either of these materials, the Contractor must supply certification by an 20 
independent testing laboratory that the materials meets the requirement of ASTM D 5893 – 21 
Standard Specification of Cold-Applied, Single Component, Chemically Curing Silicone Joint Sealant 22 
for Portland Cement Concrete Pavements. 23 
 24 
The joint filler shall be a joint filler stop of closed cell polyethylene foam backer rod of sufficient 25 
size to provide a tight seal . The backer rod shall be installed in a saw cut joint to prevent the sealant 26 
from flowing to the bottom.  The backer rod shall be compatible  with the joint sealant to act as a 27 
bond breaker 28 
 29 
Expansion joint filler shall be cell backer rod and meet the requirements of ASTM D 5249. The 30 
expansion joint filler shall be a Closed Cell Polyethylene Foam, Non-Water Absorbent in which it 31 
shall be compatible to the sealant material. 32 
 33 
Each lot or batch of sealing compound shall be delivered to the jobsite in the manufacturer's original 34 
sealed container.  Each container shall be marked with the manufacturer's name, batch or lot 35 
number, the safe heating temperature, and shall be accompanied by the manufacturer's certification 36 
stating that the compound meets the requirements of this specification. 37 
 38 
605-2.2  BACKER ROD.  The use of a backer rod in the joint to be filled is required to control the 39 
depth of the sealant, to achieve the desired shape factor, and to support the sealant against 40 
indentation and sag.  The backer rod shall be a non-moisture absorbing, resilient material 41 
approximately 25 percent larger in diameter than the width of the joint to be sealed.  It should be 42 
compatible with the sealant, should not adhere to the sealant, should be compressible without 43 
extruding the sealant, and should recover to maintain contact with the joint faces when the joint is 44 
open. 45 
 46 
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Jute, paper, or other moisture absorbing material shall not be used for the backing material.  The 47 
backing material shall be rubber, butyl rubber, or other approved material that will not react with the 48 
joint sealer and will not form a gas when the hot joint sealer is applied. 49 
 50 
 51 
CONSTRUCTION METHODS 52 
 53 
605-3.1  TIME OF APPLICATION.  Joints shall be sealed as soon after completion of the curing 54 
period as feasible and before the pavement is opened to traffic, including construction equipment.  55 
The pavement temperature shall be above 50°F (10°C) at the time of installation of the poured joint 56 
sealing material. 57 
 58 
605-3.2  PREPARATION OF JOINTS.  59 
 60 

a. Sawing.  All joints shall be sawed in accordance with specifications and plan details.  61 
Immediately after sawing the joint, the resulting slurry shall be completely removed from joint and 62 
adjacent area by flushing with a jet of water, and by use of other tools as necessary. 63 

 64 
b. Sealing.  Immediately before sealing, the joints shall be thoroughly cleaned of all remaining 65 

laitance, curing compound, and other foreign material.  Cleaning shall be accomplished by 66 
sandblasting.  Sandblasting shall be accomplished in a minimum of two passes.  One pass per joint 67 
face with the nozzle held at an angle directly toward the joint face and not more that 3 inches from 68 
it.  Upon completion of cleaning, the joints shall be blown out with compressed air free of oil and 69 
water.  Only air compressors with operable oil and water traps shall be used to prepare the joints for 70 
sealing.  The joint faces shall be surface dry when the seal is applied. 71 
  72 
605-3.3  INSTALLATION OF SEALANTS.  Joints shall be inspected for proper width, depth, 73 
alignment, and preparation by Contractor and then shall be approved by the Engineer before sealing 74 
is allowed.  Sealants shall be installed in accordance with the following requirements: 75 
 76 
Cold Applied Sealants.  Cold applied joint sealing compound shall be applied by means of 77 
pressure equipment that will force the sealing material to the bottom of the joint and completely fill 78 
the joint without spilling the material on the surface of the pavement.  A backing material shall be 79 
placed as shown on the plans and shall be nonadhesive to the concrete or the sealant material.  80 
Sealant that does not bond to the concrete surface of the joint walls, contains voids, or fails to set to 81 
a tack-free condition will be rejected and replaced by the Contractor at no additional cost.  Before 82 
sealing the joints, the Contractor shall demonstrate that the equipment and procedures for 83 
preparing, mixing, and placing the sealant will produce a satisfactory joint seal.  This shall include the 84 
preparation of two small batches and the application of the resulting material.  Any sealant spilled on 85 
the surface of the pavement, structures and/or lighting fixtures, shall be removed immediately. 86 
 87 
 88 
METHOD OF MEASUREMENT 89 
 90 
605-4.1  No measurement will be made of joint materials required in the construction of P-401 and 91 
P-501 pavements or structures.  The cost of furnishing and installing joint materials shall be included 92 
in the Contractor’s price for pavements and structures. 93 
 94 
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BASIS OF PAYMENT 95 
 96 
605-5.1  No payment will be made for sawing, joint sealant, or joint filler and shall be included in the 97 
Contractor’s price for P-401 and P-501 pavement and concrete structures. 98 
 99 
Payment will be made under: 100 
 101 
REFER TO APPENDIX P FOR ITEM DESCRIPTIONS. 102 
 103 
 104 
TESTING REQUIREMENTS 105 
 106 
ASTM D 412 Test Methods for Vulcanized Rubber and Thermoplastic Elastomers – 107 

Tension 108 
 109 
ASTM D 1644 Test Methods for Nonvolatile Content of Varnishes 110 
 111 
 112 
MATERIAL REQUIREMENTS 113 
 114 
ASTM D 1854 Jet-Fuel-Resistant Concrete Joint Sealer, Hot-Applied Elastic Type 115 
 116 
ASTM D 3406 Joint Sealants, Hot-Applied, Elastomeric-Type, for Portland Cement 117 

Concrete Pavements 118 
 119 
ASTM D 3569 Joint Sealant, Hot-Applied, Elastometric, Jet-Fuel-Resistant Type, for 120 

Portland Cement Concrete Pavements 121 
 122 
ASTM D 3581 Joint Sealant, Hot-Applied, Jet-Fuel-Resistant Type, for Portland Cement 123 

Concrete and Tar-Concrete Pavements 124 
 125 
ASTM D 5893 Standard Specifications for Cold Applied, Single Component, Chemically 126 

Curing Silicone Joint Sealant for Portland Cement Concrete 127 
Pavements 128 

 129 
ASTM D 6690 Joint and Crack Sealants, Hot-Applied, for Concrete and Asphalt 130 

Pavements 131 
 132 

 133 

**END ITEM P-605** 134 
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